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RFP Questions and Clarifications Memorandum 

To: Vendors Responding to RFP Number 3705 for the Mississippi Department of Human 
Services (MDHS) 

From: Craig P. Orgeron, Ph.D. 

Date: December 11, 2012 

Subject:  Responses to Questions Submitted and Clarifications to Specifications 

Contact Name: Tangela Harrion 

Contact Phone Number:  601-432-8112 

Contact E-mail Address: Tangela.Harrion@its.ms.gov 

RFP Number 3705 is hereby amended as follows:  
 

1. Section VII Technical Specifications, Item 7.2.1 is being added to read: 
 
“ITS prefers the Vendor install at least two installations.  One for Test or 
Development and the second for Production.” 
 

2. Section VII Technical Specifications, Item 7.5 is being modified to read: 
 
“The Vendor must specify the minimum and recommended hardware (server(s) and 
storage) requirements including the capacity of the equipment needed to install and 
run the latest version of Cognos BI 10.x software in the ITS Data Center’s shared 
environment.  Specifications should not include references to specific manufacturers 
or cost.” 
 

3. Section VII Technical Specifications, Item 10.8 is being modified to read: 
 
“Vendor must propose their fully loaded hourly rate (which includes, travel, per 
diem, lodging and other expenses) and their non-loaded (or remote) hourly rate for 
support services relating to the reports they develop for MDHS.” 
 

4. Section VII Technical Specifications, Item 11.11 is being added to read: 
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 “If the Vendor himself cannot provide any of the training listed in Item 11, 
Training, than the Vendor must acquire and propose a 3rd party Vendor to conduct 
the training.”    

 
5. Section VIII Cost Information Submission is being replaced with the attached 

revised Cost Information Submission. 
 

6. Title page, INVITATION is modified as follows: 
  
 INVITATION:  Sealed proposals, subject to the attached conditions, will be 

received at this office until December 19, 2012 @ 3:00 p.m. local time for the 
acquisition of the products/services described below for Mississippi Department of 
Human Services, Project Number 39668. 

 
7. Title page, third box is modified as follows: 

 

 PROPOSAL, SUBMITTED IN RESPONSE TO 
RFP NO. 3705 

DUE December 19, 2012 @ 3:00 p.m., 
ATTENTION:  Tangela Harrion 

 
8. Section VII Technical Specifications, Item 3 Procurement Schedule is amended as 

follows: 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Vendor must include in their proposal a response to each amended requirement as listed above.  
Vendor must respond using the same terminology as provided in the original requirements. 
 
The following questions were submitted to ITS and are being presented as they were submitted, 
except to remove any reference to a specific vendor.  This information should assist you in 
formulating your response. 
 
Question 1: Has the MS Department of Human Services already migrated to the latest version 
  of Cognos? 
 
Response: No, MDHS has never installed or used Cognos before.  Refer to Section VII, 

Item 3 General Overview and Background.   
 
Question 2: Who implemented the original licenses? 
 

Task Date 
Open Proposals 12/19/12 at 3:00 p.m. 

Central Time 
Begin Evaluation of Proposals 12/20/12 
Proposed Project Completion Date 03/30/13 
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Response: Refer to the response to Question #1. 
 
Question 3: While MDHS has never installed the purchased Cognos 8 suite, did they go 

through any Cognos training? 
 
Response: No. 
 
Question 4: What is the structure of MDHS’s IT Organization?  The proper implementation of 

an enterprise BI platform and processes can have an impact on the resident 
organization structure to accommodate the new technologies, skills, processes and 
accountabilities. 

 
Response: MDHS has an Operations Group, an Applications Group and a Network & 

PC Support Group.  MIS has about 65 total staff.   
 
Question 5: We would need the itemized listing of Cognos components (release 8) owned by 

the client as well as the number of license per component.  This would be very 
beneficial for our response. 

 
Response: MDHS originally purchased the following Cognos components with software 

subscription and support.  MDHS will download the latest version which the 
Vendor must install. 

  
DESCRIPTION QUANTITY 
IBM Cognos BI AU Administrator 2 
IBM Cognos 8 Professional Authorized Users  20 
IBM Cognos 8 Business Intelligence Consumer 300 

 
Question 6: When is implementation/timeline for production? 
 
Response: MDHS will work with the awarded Vendor to set a reasonable anticipated 

implementation/production date for the Cognos product, with the 
understanding that the completion date is per the proposed project 
completion date listed in Item 4, Procurement Project Schedule. 

 
Question 7: Procurement Project Schedule - How long is the evaluation period for proposals?  

We understand the proposed project completion date is 03/22/13; however, it is 
unclear when the contract is expected to be awarded. 

 
Response: The length of the evaluation period depends on the number of proposals 

received as well as if any clarifications are required in order to issue a 
Notification of Award. 

 
Question 8: Section VII Technical Specifications: #4 Procurement Project Schedule: The 

listed table shows proposed project completion date to be 03/22/2013.  Does ITS 
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expects the vendor to finish all installation, configuration, reporting and training 
services by this date? 

 
Response: Yes.  However, should Vendor believe the completion date is not reasonable, 

then Vendor must propose an alternate date and provide details in their 
proposed Work Plan as specified in this RFP.  

 
Question 9: Technical Requirements – 7.2 MDHS plans to have the proposed solution 

installed on ITS’ virtualized VMware ESX 4.5 and Microsoft Windows 2008 R2 
environment.   

 a.) How many installations will be needed? 
 b.) Will a Development separate from a Production environment be needed? 
 
Response: a.) Refer to Clarification Number 1 in this Memorandum. 
 b.) The Test/Development environment should be separate from Production. 
 
Question 10: How many environments are being installed?  We assume one production, one 

development/test environment? 
 
Response:  Refer to Clarification Number 1 in this Memorandum. 
 
Question 11: Cognos doesn’t recommend/support Virtual for a production environment, we 

recommend a physical environment for production. 
 
Response: N/A 
 
Question 12: 8. Installation – 8.1 Vendor will be responsible for the installation and 

configuration of the proposed solution on the server(s) and any other hardware.   
 a.) How many installations will be needed? 
 b.) Will a Development separate from a Production environment be needed? 
 
Response: a.) Refer to Clarification Number 1 in this Memorandum. 
 b.) Refer to the response to Question #9b. 
 
Question 13: 8.3 Vendor must provide customization services if the Cognos BI software must 

be modified to accommodate MDHS business needs. We understand two 
databases, Microsoft SQL 2008 R2 databases and IBM DB2, will need to be 
deployed for reporting development.  Will there be any other data sources in 
addition to these two? 

 
Response: No. The main focus will be utilizing Microsoft SQL 2008 R2 databases.  

MDHS hopes to have an IBM DB2 database for testing by the time the 
reports are to be developed. 

 
Question 14: Please define “MDHS business needs.”?  
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Response: MDHS anticipates select end-users will be able to generate their own reports. 
 
Question 15: Please define “performing properly”? 
 
Response: A reasonable response time for users to get report results. 
 
Question 16: 9. Security Requirements – 9.3 The proposed solution must allow the MDHS 

System Administrator to set rights for access, modification, addition and deletion 
of records and fields by group or individual user.   We ask for further clarification 
on the reference to “addition and deletion of records and fields by group or 
individual user”.  Cognos BI will not allow for any data manipulation, changes, or 
deletions, it is a read-only application.  What is the requirement under this 
section?    

 
Response: This requirement is referring to Reporting.  Some users would be allowed to 

add/delete fields on reports and others would only be allowed to run an 
existing report with no changes. 

 
Question 17: Could you please describe security requirements for the reports to address the 

following 3 categories: 
  a.) How many different user groups (Accountants, Managers etc.) would be 

 accessing the data (who has access to what report)?  
 b.)  Any (row) data level security requirements?  
  c.) Any special security considerations for special elements like SSN, DOB, 

 Salary? 
 
Response: MDHS has not defined the security requirements for Cognos.  However, 

MDHS has 13 Division, but not all will use Cognos.  Divisions should not 
have access to another division’s reports.  A regional director may have 
access to a report that a case worker would not have access to. 

   
Question 18: 10. Reporting  Requirements, 10.2 The Vendor must create a minimum of 10 

reports for MDHS divisions including, but not limited to, the Mississippi 
Automated Child Welfare Information System (MACWIS) and the Division of 
Program Integrity.  Can additional details/requirements be provided for these 10 
reports in order to estimate a more accurate estimate? 

 
Response: MDHS wants the Vendor develop three to four simple reports, three 

moderately complicated reports and three fairly complex reports.   This will 
allow the administrators to understand their level of involvement to produce 
reports based upon its level of complexity.   

 
Question 19: How many total divisions (and therefore reports) are there in 10.2?  
 
Response: MDHS has 13 Divisions.   
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Question 20: First, I see that there are 10 reports expected to be built and delivered along with 
this engagement but there are no specifications to those reports.  Complexity of 
reports can range widely, so estimations on what level of effort it would take to 
produce one report could range between one day (simple) and one to two weeks 
(very complex).   

 
 a.) Without report specifications, it is hard to bid on this portion.  Will there be 

report specifications made available?   
 b.) Or should we produce an estimate and capture assumptions around that 

estimate?  
 
Response: a.) Report specifications will be made available to the awarded Vendor.  

Vendor should base estimates on implementation experience of similar size 
and scope. 

  b.) Yes, provide estimates. 
 
Question 21: 10.4 The proposed solution must be configured to pull reports from either 

Microsoft SQL 2008 R2 databases and IBM DB2 databases.  We understand two 
databases, Microsoft SQL 2008 R2 databases and IBM DB2, will need to be 
deployed for reporting development.  Will there be any other data sources in 
addition to these two?  

 
Response: Refer to the response to Question #13. 
 
Question 22: Is there a data warehouse where this data can be pulled from? If not then we 

suggest the inclusion of the same in the scope.  
 
Response: There is a SQL database and additional SQL databases could be developed 

before the project begins.  Production NATURAL databases will NOT be 
accessed. 

 
Question 23: Is there an ETL (Extract Transform Load) tool in place or a data warehouse? 
 
Response: There will be one or more SQL databases available and those have been 

created using ETL. 
 
Question 24: If there’s no data warehouse, could there be a possibility of making overnight 

copy of database and using that for reporting instead of using live database? 
 
Response: MDHS’ intent is to create one or more SQL database(s) each night that will 

be used for reporting. 
 
Question 25: a.) Define real-time?   
 b.) Do you expect the users to hit live source data or some sort of staging area? 
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Response: a.) Real-time in this case is the ability of the users to produce reports any 
time during the day without having MIS personnel do it for them via a batch 
job.  

 b.) No production, NATURAL databases will be accessed. 
 
Question 26: Is real-time data desired for reporting? 
 
Response: Not initially, reports will come from a SQL database that is updated nightly. 
 
Question 27: Are the desired reports produced today manually after extracting data from 

systems or are they new reports? 
 
Response: Right now MIS executes the reports. After Cognos is installed, the reports 

should be executed by the end users. 
 
Question 28: Are the host applications (for which reports are desired) COTS products, or, are 

they custom-developed applications? 
 
Response: They are custom applications, but data for Cognos reporting will be moved 

to SQL databases from the application’s Natural Databases. 
 
Question 29: Is there any COGNOS 8 metadata (reports and packages) that needs to be 

migrated to COGNOS 10? 
 
Response: No. 
 
Question 30: What are the key Operational/Transactional applications in place that would be 

the source of the data to be modeled in the Cognos environment? 
 
Response: MAVERICS (Mississippi Application Verification Eligibility and 

Information Control System), MACWIS (Mississippi Automated Child 
Welfare Information System), METSS (Mississippi Enforcement and 
Tracking of Support System), JAWS (Jobs Automated Work System), ECCD 
(Early Childhood Childcare Development) and Weatherization. 

 
Question 31: What is the content store database (SQL/DB2)? 
   
Response: SQL.  Refer to the response to Question #13. 

 
Question 32: What database engines are currently live in production supporting the various 

operational/transactions systems?  
 
Response: NATURAL and MS SQL. 
 
Question 33: Apart from on-demand reports, are there any other requirements like automated 

scheduled delivery of reports, or, trigger based delivery of reports? 
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Response: MDHS is not aware of all the capabilities available in Cognos.  However, 

there could be a future need for some of these capabilities. 
 
Question 34: Are there any performance considerations for reports? E.g. report must execute 

within 10 mins etc.? 
 
Response: MDHS has not defined any performance considerations at this time.  

However, MDHS expects the reports to run as quickly as possible. 
 
Question 35: What is the assumed quality of the data?  
 
Response: The data should be of good quality. 
 
Question 36: Could you please ask the database administrator (DBA) to look at major tables in 

all the databases desired for reporting and provide number of rows in tables e.g. 
 
 a. Database 1: 
  i.    Employee table – 300k records 
  ii. Account table – 100records 
  iii. General Ledger table – 3 million records 
 
 b.  Database 2: 
  i.  Department Table – 100 records 
  ii.  Sales Transaction Table – 2 million records 
 
Response: The databases have not been completed. 
 
Question 37: 10.8 Vendor must propose their hourly rate for support services relating to the 

reports they develop for MDHS.  For all additional support services, will MDHS 
consider a combination of onsite and remote support (assuming access can be 
granted)?  Also, are travel expenses allowed under this RFP?   

 
Response: MDHS will consider onsite or remote support for all additional support 

services.  Refer to Clarification Numbers 3 and 5 of this Memorandum.    
 
Question 38: 11.  Training  
 a.) IBM provides formal training including formal materials for all user groups.  

What is the expectation for MDHS in regards to training, similar to what IBM 
offers?  

 b.) If vendor cannot propose a solution for this section, will vendor be 
disqualified? 

 
Response: a.) Yes, similar training is expected. 
 b.) Refer to Clarification Number 4 of this Memorandum. 
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Question 39: Also, training is specified with some specific IBM Cognos courses referenced.  
We are not an authorized certified IBM Cognos training partner, so we cannot 
offer the formal curriculum related to the referenced courses.  We could, however, 
coordinate a third-party or IBM-direct training arrangements if that would 
desired.  Also, we could develop and produce customized training around Cognos 
Connection, Report Studio, and offer that.  Would that be acceptable?  Or, what 
guidance could you offer in this regard? 

 
Response: Refer to the response to Question #38. 
 
Question 40: Would there be a dedicated resource available to perform system administration 

after the work has been performed?  
 
Response: Yes. 
 
Question 41: Would the services of a database administrator (DBA) and application support 

personnel be available to the vendor so they can describe the application process 
flows as well as provide information on movement of data in tables? 

 
Response: Yes, once the project begins. 
 
Question 42: Is there a need for users to have access “on the go” over wireless, 4G/3G devices? 
   
Response: Not at this time, however, this could be a future need. 
 
Question 43: Would COGNOS need to be accessed externally?  Is there a remote access 

mechanism in place like CITRIX etc. for other enterprise applications that can be 
used for COGNOS? 

 
Response: At this time, Cognos will be used within the agency.  
 
RFP responses are due December 19, 2012, at 3:00 p.m. (Central Time). 
 
If you have any questions concerning the information above or if we can be of further assistance, 
please contact Tangela Harrion at 601-432-8112 or via email at Tangela.Harrion@its.ms.gov. 

 

Attachment: Section VIII, Revised Cost Information Submission 

 

cc:  ITS Project File Number 39668 


